TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

TUESDAY, MARCH 1, 2016
8:30 AM.

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM

# PAG
TIME TOPIC PRESENTER E

830 1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 1
February 16, 2016, Regular Meeting
February 16, 2016, Closed Session
February 22 & 23, 2016, Special Meeting Minutes
Annual Retreat

3 APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 1, 2016, AGENDA 11
8:35 4 PRESENTATION OF SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER’S ANNUAL MR. FRED NIRDE 13
AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT
8:40 5 REQUEST TO RENEW CONTRACT WITH COURTHOUSE Ms. AMY SHOOK 77
COMPUTER SYSTEMS
8:45 6 REQUEST TO ACCEPT HMGP GRANT MR. JEFF VIRGINIA 85
850 7 REQUEST TO SURPLUS EQUIPMENT Ms. MARGARET PIERCE 91
855 8 MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS MR. DERON GEOUQUE
A. Boards and Commissions 93
B. Announcements 135.
9:00 9 PuBLIC COMMENT 136
10:00 10 BREAK 136
10:05 11 CLOSED SESSION 136

Attorney/Client Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3)
10:30 12  ADJOURN



030116 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 2:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

February 16, 2016, Regular Meeting
February 16, 2016, Closed Session
February 22 & 23, 2016, Special Meeting Minutes (Annual Retreat)



030116 BCC Meeting

MINUTES

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2016

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday,
February 16, 2016, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina.

PRESENT: Jimmy Hodges, Chairman
David Blust, Vice-Chairman
Billy Kennedy, Commissioner
John Welch, Commissioner
Perry Yates, Commissioner
Stacy C. Eggers, 1V, County Attorney
Deron Geouque, County Manager
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board

Chairman Hodges called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M.

Vice-Chairman Blust opened the meeting with a prayer and Commissioner Kennedy led the
Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Hodges called for additions and/or corrections to the February 2, 2016, regular
meeting minutes.

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the
February 2, 2016, regular meeting minutes as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Chairman Hodges called for additions and/or corrections to the February 16, 2016, agenda.

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the
February 16, 2016, agenda as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0



030116 BCC Meeting

PuBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE CLOSEOUT OF
CoMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) SCATTERED SITE HOUSING
PROGRAM #12-C-2431

A public hearing was held for the close out of the Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) Scattered Site Housing Rehabilitation Program #12-C-2431.

Chairman Hodges called the public hearing to order at 5:32 P.M.

Ms. Michelle Ball with High Country Council of Governments reviewed the timeline of the grant
and the homes that received funding for repairs.

There being no public comment, Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust,
moved to declare the public hearing closed at 5:37 P.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the close-out of
Community Development Block Grant Scattered Site Housing Program #12-C-2431.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

PuBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON PROPOSED AMENDMENTS
TO THE ORDINANCE TO REGULATE WIRELESS COMMUNICATION TOWERS IN
WATAUGA COUNTY INCLUDING THE TITLE CHANGE TO: THE WATAUGA
COUNTY WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS ORDINANCE

A public hearing was held to consider proposed amendments to the Ordinance to Regulate
Wireless Communication Towers in Watauga County including the title change to: the Watauga
County Wireless Telecommunications Ordinance. The amendments are recommended by the
Planning Board. The new ordinance is modeled after the North Carolina League of
Municipalities version and incorporates federal and state law and court cases. The new
ordinance would allow for greater height in some cases to encourage concealed wireless
technology and increase collocation.

Mr. Furman proposed three additional amendments to the proposed ordinance as follows:

e Adding: II(C)(6) New and existing wireless support structures and facilities owned by
governmental agencies and designed for non-commercial emergency communications.

e Changing ten (10) calendar days to fourteen (14) calendar days under 1V(D)(1)(a).

e Changing Variance to Special Use Permit under VI(C)(1)



030116 BCC Meeting

Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to call the public hearing to
order at 5:38 P.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

There being no public comment, Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Welch,
moved to declare the public hearing closed at 5:45 P.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to adopt the Watauga
County Wireless Telecommunications Ordinance as present by Mr. Joe Furman.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

PROPOSED LANDLORD LETTER OF CONSENT BETWEEN HIGH COUNTRY
COMMUNITY HEALTH AND APPALACHIAN DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT

On behalf of Ms. Alice Salthouse, High Country Community Health C.E.O; County Manager
Geouque requested authorization of the submittal of a grant to expand current dental operations
at the Watauga County Health Department facility. The grant deadline was prior to the Board
meeting; therefore, staff authorized the submittal of the application contingent upon Board
approval. Board action is required to approve the submittal of the grant; therefore, should the
Board wish to decline the submittal, staff will request High Country Community Health
withdraw the application.

County Manager Geouque stated that, should the grant be awarded, a request for acceptance of
the grant would be presented to the Board for approval.

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the submission
of the grant as presented by the County Manager.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER QUARTERLY REPORT

County Manager Geouque presented the Smoky Mountain Center Quarterly Financial Report as
required by Statute. This report was given for information only with no action neither required
nor taken.



030116 BCC Meeting

TAX MATTERS

A. Monthly Collections Report

Tax Administrator Larry Warren presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of
January 2016. This report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was
required.

B. Refunds and Releases
Mr. Warren presented the Refunds and Releases Report for January 2016 for Board approval:
TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the Refunds and
Releases Report for January 2016, as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

COMMISSIONER DISCUSSION

Per Commissioner request, discussion was held regarding the recent Board of Adjustment ruling
regarding the asphalt plant permit for Hampton/Maymead.

Commissioner Welch requested legal guidance regarding the recent ruling stating that he had
received emails from those in support of and against the ruling. Chairman Hodges deferred to
the County Attorney.

County Attorney Eggers stated that the Board of Adjustment had concluded the second of two
recent hearings.

In the first hearing the Board of Adjustment ruled with Planning staff that the Appalachian
Materials permit for an asphalt plant be denied. The ruling was appealed to the Superior Court.

In the second hearing the Board of Adjustment ruled against Planning staff stating that the
Hampton/Maymead permit would be upheld. The County Attorney stated that following the
written decision of the Board of Adjustment, the Board of Commissioners could appeal the
decision to the Superior Court but it would be premature to do so at this time. Appeals could be
made, if so desired, within thirty days of the receipt of a written decision by the Board of
Adjustment. If appealed at the appropriate time, the Superior Court would only review the
legality of the hearing such as errors of law or arbitrary and capricious judgment.

County Attorney Eggers stated that he could give legal advice in closed session.



030116 BCC Meeting

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. March Meeting Schedule

County Manager Geouque stated that due to One-Stop Voting and the Primary, the Board of
Elections will be using the Commissioners’ Board Room from March 3 — March 16. This
includes the second regularly scheduled Commissioners meeting in March.

Staff recommended cancelling the second meeting in March or rescheduling it for Thursday,
March 17, 2016, at 5:30 P.M.

County Attorney Eggers suggested keeping the meeting scheduled in case any action was needed
in regards to the Board of Adjustment’s recent ruling and then cancelling the meeting if it was
not needed.

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to reschedule the March 15,
2016, regular meeting to Thursday, March 17, 2016, at 5:30 P.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

B. Announcements

County Manager Geouque announced the following:

e The Annual Pre-Budget Retreat will be held on Monday, February 22, 2016, beginning at
12:00 P.M. and continued on Tuesday, February 23, 2016, beginning at 9:00 A.M. in the
Commissioners’ Board Room.

e A public hearing is scheduled at 6:00 P.M. on March 3, 2016, in the Large Courtroom at
the Watauga County Courthouse to receive public comments regarding the requested
modification of the air permit for Maymead Materials, Inc.’s 421 Recycling Yard in
Boone, North Carolina.

PuBLIC COMMENT

The following shared their comments regarding the recent Board of Adjustment hearing ruling:

Susie Winters Dominic Dixon Chip Williams
Leigh Ann Henion David Sengel Anne Ward
Andrew Hayslip Sue Counts John Callahan
Diane Warman Blanks Natalie Foreman and daughter, Anna Karen Norris
Glenn Williams Diane Tilson Carolyn Henion
Mandy Anongrier Cherie Smith

Hailey Dellinger Lynn Doyle



030116 BCC Meeting

CLOSED SESSION

At 7:10 P.M., Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to enter
Closed Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Personnel
Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6).

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to resume the open meeting
at 7:53 P.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

ADJOURN

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to adjourn the meeting at
7:53 P.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0
Jimmy Hodges, Chairman

ATTEST:
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board



030116 BCC Meeting

MINUTES

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
SPECIAL MEETING
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2016 & TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2016

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a special meeting on Monday, February 22,
2016, and Tuesday, February 23, 2016, in order to conduct a retreat to review goals and
objectives for the County. The meetings were held in the Commissioners’ Board Room located
in the Watauga County Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina.

PRESENT: Jimmy Hodges, Chairman
David Blust, Vice-Chairman
Billy Kennedy, Commissioner
John Welch, Commissioner
Perry Yates, Commissioner
Deron Geouque, County Manager
Margaret Pierce, Finance Director

Lunch was provided at 12:00 P.M. Chairman Hodges called the meeting to order on Monday,
February 22, 2016, at 12:30 P.M., welcoming those in attendance.

The following topics were discussed:

Opening Remarks
Mr. Deron Geouque
Review of Current Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)
Mr. Deron Geouque & Mr. Robert Marsh
A. Current CIP Status Report
B. Office Space and Facilities Needs Assessment
C. Old AppalCART Building
D. Relocation of County Personnel
1. Tax Appraisal
2. Planning and Inspections
3. License Plate Agency
4. Red Cross
Review of Current Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)
A. Landfill Road Relocation
B. Parking Lot Behind Courthouse
C. Recreation Center
D. Telecommunication Upgrades
E. School Facilities
Break at 3:05 P.M. to 3:15 P.M.
Update on Greenway Projects
Mr. Joe Furman
Wireless Connection Efforts



030116 BCC Meeting

FY 2016 Review and Discussion of 2017 Budget
Ms. Margaret Pierce
A. Revenues
B. Expenditures
C. Debt Service Report
D. Budget Calendar, Budget work sessions set for May 11, 12:00 —

6:00 P.M. and May 12, 9:00 A.M. — 12:00 P.M.

Caldwell Community College & Technical Institute
Dr. Ken Boham

School Board Funding Issues
Dr. Scott Elliott, School Board Members Ron Henries, Jason Cornett,

Barbara Kinsey, Dr. Jay Fenwick and Staff members Ly Marze, Dr. Stephen
Martin and Danny Clark

A. FY 2017 Funding Needs
B. Schools’ Capital Improvement Plan
C. Indoor Practice Facility

Board Directives/Discussion

A recess was declared at 6:05 P.M. The meeting reconvened on Tuesday, February 23, 2016, at
9:14 A M.

Update-Study on Future Medics Base Locations
Dr. Marvin Hoffman
Tourism Development Authority (TDA)
Mr. Matt Vincent and Mr. Wright Tilley
Break
Miscellaneous & Commissioner Matters
Mr. Deron Geouque
A. State Issues
B. Commissioners Matters

The County Manager concluded the retreat by reviewing the issues addressed and seeking
direction from the Board for Fiscal Year 2016-2017.

The meeting adjourned at 11:35 A.M.

Jimmy Hodges, Chairman

ATTEST:
Deron Geouque, County Manager



030116 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

10



030116 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 3:

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 1, 2016, AGENDA




030116 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

12



030116 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 4:

PRESENTATION OF SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER’S ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL
REPORT

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Fred Nirdé, Chief Financial Officer Smoky Mountain LME/MCO, will present the Smoky
Mountain Center Annual Audited Financial Statements as required by Statute.

The report is for information only; therefore no action is required.



030116 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY
FINANCE OFFICE

814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC 28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007 Fax (828) 265-8006

MEMORANDUM

TO: Deron T. Geouque, County Manager

FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director

SUBJECT: Smoky Mountain Center Audited Financial Statements
DATE: February 25, 2016

Attached is a copy of the audited financial report from Smoky Mountain Center for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. This audited financial report was provided by Smoky
Mountain Center to comply with the G.S. 122C-117(d). Fred Nirdé from Smoky will be
at the meeting to address any questions.

excerpt from G.S. 122C-117(d)

(d) A multicounty area authority shall provide to each board of county
commissioners of participating counties a copy of the area authority's annual audit. The
audit findings shall be presented in a format prescribed by the county and shall be read
into the minutes of the meeting at which the audit findings are presented.



030116 BCC Meeting



030116 BCC Meeting



030116 BCC Meeting



030116 BCC Meeting



030116 BCC Meeting



030116 BCC Meeting

20



030116 BCC Meeting

21



030116 BCC Meeting

22



030116 BCC Meeting

23



030116 BCC Meeting

24



030116 BCC Meeting

25



030116 BCC Meeting

26



030116 BCC Meeting

27



030116 BCC Meeting

28



030116 BCC Meeting

29



030116 BCC Meeting

30



030116 BCC Meeting

31



030116 BCC Meeting

32



030116 BCC Meeting

33



030116 BCC Meeting

34



030116 BCC Meeting

35



030116 BCC Meeting

36



030116 BCC Meeting

37



030116 BCC Meeting

38



030116 BCC Meeting

39



030116 BCC Meeting

40



030116 BCC Meeting

41



030116 BCC Meeting

42



030116 BCC Meeting

43



030116 BCC Meeting

44



030116 BCC Meeting

45



030116 BCC Meeting

46



030116 BCC Meeting

47



030116 BCC Meeting

48



030116 BCC Meeting

49



030116 BCC Meeting

50



030116 BCC Meeting

51



030116 BCC Meeting

52



030116 BCC Meeting

53



030116 BCC Meeting

54



030116 BCC Meeting

55



030116 BCC Meeting

56



030116 BCC Meeting

57



030116 BCC Meeting

58



030116 BCC Meeting

59



030116 BCC Meeting

60



030116 BCC Meeting

61



030116 BCC Meeting

62



030116 BCC Meeting

63



030116 BCC Meeting

64



030116 BCC Meeting

65



030116 BCC Meeting

66



030116 BCC Meeting

67



030116 BCC Meeting

68



030116 BCC Meeting

69



030116 BCC Meeting

70



030116 BCC Meeting

71



030116 BCC Meeting

72



030116 BCC Meeting

73



030116 BCC Meeting

74



030116 BCC Meeting

75



030116 BCC Meeting

Blank Page



030116 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 5:

REQUEST TO RENEW CONTRACT WITH COURTHOUSE COMPUTER SYSTEMS

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Register of Deeds, Amy Shook, will present a request to renew the contract with Courthouse
Computer Systems, in the amount of $36,225 and will be effective July 1, 2016 through June 30,
2020. The contract remains the same with the exception of the 5% price increase. However, the
$36,225 is locked in for the next four (4) years. The County Attorney has reviewed the contract
with Courthouse Computer Systems and recommends approval.

Board approval is required.

77



030116 BCC Meeting

Courthouse Computer Systems-Software License and Support Agreement
THIS AGREEMENT made by and between Courthouse Computer
Systems, Inc. (“Licensor”) and the Watauga County Register of Deeds office
(“Licensee”).
The “Agreement” covers data conversion, licensing, software support website
maintenance, and microfilm conversion for a contract period of July 1, 2016
through June 30t 2020 as outlined below:

1. Definitions

1.1. “Designated Environment” means the computer equipment
currently in place in the office.

1.2. “Error” means a material failure of the Software to function in
conformity with the Specifications.

1.3. “Licensed Copies” means the number of copies of the Software being
licensed to the Licensee.

1.4. “Location(s)” means the Licensee office at 842 West King Street,
Boone, NC 28607.

1.5. “Office” means the Watauga County Register of Deeds office.

1.6. “Software” refers to any of the supported software modules defined
in section two of this Agreement.

2. Software Modules Included

Document Recording and Cashiering

Document Indexing

Document Retrieval

Document Imaging

Internet Document Retrieval

Fee Reporting

Vital Records Management

Marriage License Issuance

Online Marriage Application (both Internet and Office Kiosk)
10. Image Redaction

11. E-Recording

12. User Accounting-including support of escrow accounts

WONoOOh LN =

Functionality incorporated within these software modules includes, but is not
limited to:

1. The ability to easily export records in the system to an ASCII text file
format to ensure forward compatibility without costly data conversion if the
county decides to switch to a different software vendor at a later date. This
guarantees complete safety and security by ensuring that your data will always
be readable in the future. The Register of Deeds office can create and store
these files on a daily basis.

2. The seamless integration of Point of Sale (POS) stations with the
indexing system. The POS module operates as the office cash register by

78



030116 BCC Meeting

controlling the cash drawer, printing receipts, and producing detailed ledger
reports of all transactions.

3. The immediate accessibility of documents for in-office retrieval. If
desired, original documents may be scanned immediately for viewing on
retrieval stations throughout the office.

4. The automatic generation of monthly reports that reference the
complete set of financial data maintained in the system.

5. The ability to print traditional index books on-demand.

6. The ability to print traditional document books on-demand.

7. The ability to back-index and back scan vital records.

8. The ability to back-scan document books.

9. Compliance with the 2012 North Carolina Standards for Indexing
Real-Property documents as well as any subsequent standards that take effect.

10. Perform those functions and operate in compliance with all
representations contained in Licensor’s promotional literature.

3. Services Provided by Licensor

1. Data Conversion-the Licensor will convert all existing document
images. Licensor will also convert and load all indexing data from the existing
software system. All document image conversion and computerized index data
conversion will be conducted as part of the Agreement.

2. Website Maintenance- The Licensor will provide Internet hosting of
Land Record Indexes and Images for the Licensee. The Licensee will have the
capability to upload new index information and images on a daily basis.

3. Telephone Support- The Licensor will provide telephone numbers that
can be used as needed by the Licensee for assistance regarding the supported
Software Modules and services. Telephone support is available during normal
business hours (8:00AM to 5:00PM Monday through Friday). Licensor
responds to all telephone support issues based upon the criticality of the issue,
with systems that are completely non-functional receiving highest priority.
Licensor endeavors, but does not guarantee, to respond to all non-critical
issues within one business day.

4. Remote Support-Licensor will provide remote on-line support for the
software modules through direct broadband connectivity provided by the
Licensee. Remote online support allows the Licensor to perform system
troubleshooting and make certain updates or configuration changes more
quickly. Licensor agrees that it shall use the method of Remote Access chosen
by the Licensee. This method may be subject to change as determined by the
Information Technology Director for Licensee.

5. Microfilm Copies- The Licensor will be responsible for regular creation
of archival copies of documents by converting the scanned images into
microfilm. Licensor will deliver microfilm copies to the North Carolina
Department of Archives. Upon delivery of each batch of microfilm copies,
Licensee will be sent confirmation of the individual books included in the
batch.

79



030116 BCC Meeting

6. Additional Services-The Licensor is available to provide additional
services as needed at separately negotiated rates that are not included within
the terms of this Agreement. These services include, but are not limited to,
back-file document scanning, and making images of old index books
electronically searchable.

7. Statutory Changes-If changes are required either by general statute or
state guidelines, the licensor will make necessary software updates at no
charge to ensure compliance.

4. Licensee Responsibilities

1. Licensee shall permit secured remote access to the Supported server
and PC desktops in order for Licensor to provide service.

2. Licensee shall periodically complete a total backup of all databases
maintained by the office.

3. Licensee shall permit free and full access, including secure remote
access, to the Supported Hardware in order for Licensor to provide service.

4. Licensee shall provide equipment that is dependable and sufficient to
meet the needs of the office.

5. Licensee shall provide remote connectivity, using a method of
Licensee’s choosing, so that Licensor can securely connect to the network and
access individual machines in the Register of Deeds office to provide support.

5. Licensor Responsibilities

1. Licensor shall protect any of the Licensee’s confidential information
and shall not disclose any of the Licensee’s information, public or private, to
any third party without written consent from the Watauga County Register of
Deeds.

2. While the Licensor is connected to Watauga County over VPN, the
Licensor shall protect the County network by maintaining current antivirus
software and updates on any connecting PC’s and not attempting to connect to
any PC’s or servers on the Watauga County network that are not PC’s or
servers used by the Register of Deeds office.

3. Licensor shall not disclose any of Watauga County’s network or
authentication information to third parties without the written consent of the
Watauga County Information Technologies Director.

4. Licensor shall not change any security settings on PC’s or servers
without the written consent of the Watauga County Information Technologies
Director. Security settings may include but are not limited to the creation of
network shares, firewall settings, user group assignment, and folder or registry
permissions.

6. Loaner Equipment

During the installation of software in the office, the Licensor may loan
computer equipment to assist in the transition. All equipment provided by the
Licensor remains the property of the Licensor. Any loaner equipment provided
by the Licensor will be done so free of charge.

80



030116 BCC Meeting

7. Software License

Licensor grants Licensee a non-exclusive, non-transferable license to use up to
sixteen copies of the Software and Documentation solely for its internal
operations at the Location(s) and on the Designated Environment for the term
of this Agreement. All Software and Documentation remains the property of
the Licensor. Licensee agrees to not make unauthorized copies of the Software
and Documentation.

8. Proprietary Rights

Licensee acknowledges and agrees that the copyright, patent, trade secret, and
all other intellectual property rights of whatever nature in the Software or
Documentation are and shall remain the property of the Licensor, and nothing
in this Agreement should be construed as transferring any aspect of such
rights to the Licensee.

9. Confidentiality

9.1 Confidential Information

“Confidential Information”, shall mean the Software, Documentation, and
terms and conditions of this Agreement. Licensee acknowledges the
confidential and proprietary nature of the Confidential Information and agrees
that it shall not reveal or disclose any Confidential Information for any purpose
to any other person, firm, corporation, or other entity, other than office or
county employees with a need to know such confidential information to
perform employment responsibilities consistent with Licensee’s rights under
this Agreement. Licensee shall safeguard and protect the Confidential
Information from theft, piracy, or unauthorized access in a matter at least
consistent with the protections Licensee uses to protect its own most
confidential information and in a manner conforming to industry standards,
whichever is greater.

9.2 Unauthorized Disclosure

Licensee shall notify Licensor immediately upon discovery of any
prohibited use or disclosure of Confidential Information, or any other breach of
confidentiality and shall fully cooperate with the efforts of Licensor to regain
possession of the Confidential Information and to prevent the further
prohibited use or disclosure of the Confidential Information.

10. Warranty

Licensor represents to Licensee that: (1) during the Agreement Period,
the Software shall operate without any Errors; and (2) upon notification to
Licensor during the Agreement Period of any errors, Licensor will, during its
normal business hours and at no cost to Licensee, use reasonable efforts to
correct such Errors which are reproducible and verifiable by Licensor. Licensor
further warrants that the Software will perform its intended purpose and shall
comply with all representations made in its promotional literature.

81



030116 BCC Meeting

11. Price

For the Software License and Implementation Services outlined in this
Agreement, Licensee agrees to pay Licensor and annual maintenance and
support fee of $36,225 and no cents. The Licensor agrees that the annual
maintenance and support fee for the services outlined in this Agreement will
not increase for the duration of the Agreement.

12. Optional Additional Services

12.1 Customization and Extensive Data Conversion
Additional time allotments for software customization are available on a
time and materials basis of $125 per hour.

13. Term and Termination of Agreement

13.1 Termination and Remedy

Licensee may terminate the Agreement without prejudice to any other
remedy Licensee may have, in the event of any material breach of this
Agreement which is not remedied within thirty days of Licensee’s notice to
Licensor of the breach and Licensee’s intent to terminate the License.
Termination shall not relieve Licensee’s obligation to pay all amounts that are
already accrued and owing or which Licensee has agreed to pay.

13.2 Breach

The Licensor may terminate this Agreement, without prejudice to any
other remedy Licensor may have, immediately without further obligation to
Licensee, in the event of any breach by Licensee, which cannot be remedied
within thirty days of Licensor’s notice to Licensee of the breach and Licensor’s
intent to terminate the License.

13.3 Cessation of Use

Upon Termination of this Agreement, Licensee will cease using the
Software and Documentation and return all copies of the Software,
Documentation, and all other Confidential Information in its possession or
destroy all copies of such materials residing in computer memory. Licensor
shall be entitled to enter the Location(s) to repossess any Software,
Documentation, and any other Confidential Information, so long as such
repossession does not compromise the future ability of the Register of Deeds to
access and retrieve electronic records in accordance with the statutory duties
of the Register of Deeds. Licensee shall, within thirty days from the effective
date of termination, certify in writing that all copies of the Software and
Documentation have been returned, deleted and destroyed.

13.4 Non-Appropriation

82



030116 BCC Meeting

Licensor acknowledges that Licensee is a governmental entity, and the
contract validity is based upon the availability of public funding under the
authority of its statutory mandate.

In the event that public funds are unavailable and not appropriate for
the performance of Licensee’s obligations under this contract, then this
contract shall automatically expire without penalty to Licensee thirty (30) days
after written notice to Licensor of the unavailability and non-appropriation of
public funds. It is expressly agreed that Licensee shall not activate this non-
appropriation provision for its convenience or to circumvent the requirements
of this contract, but only as an emergency fiscal measure during a substantial
fiscal crisis, which affects generally its governmental operations.

In the event of a change in the Licensee’s statutory authority, mandate
and mandated functions, by state and federal legislative or regulatory action,
which adversely affects Licensee’s authority to continue its obligations under
this contract, then this contract shall automatically terminate without penalty
to Licensee upon written notice to Licensor of such limitation or change in
Licensee’s legal authority.

14. Renewal

This Agreement will renew automatically for subsequent terms of one year.
Licensor shall notify Licensee sixty days in advance of the renewal date of any
changes to the Agreement. Acceptance will be assumed if the Licensee does
not notify Licensor at least thirty days prior to the renewal date.

15. Validity
If any part of this Agreement is held to be illegal or unenforceable, the validity
or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected.

16. Survival
Sections 6, 7 and 8 shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any
reason.

17. Entire Agreement

This Agreement and its schedules and Addendums comprise the entire
Agreement between the parties for licensing and support and is not subject to
change or modification except by written Agreement signed by both parties.

18. Assignment
Neither party may assign this agreement without the written consent of
the other party to this Agreement.

LICENSOR: LICENSEE:

83



030116 BCC Meeting

Signature Jimmy Hodges
Chairman, Watauga County
Commissioners

Name

Title

Date Date
Attest:

Anita Fogle
Clerk to the Board

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

Margaret Pierce
Watauga County Finance Officer

84



030116 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 6:

REQUEST To ACCEPT HMGP GRANT

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

In August of 2014, the Board approved the submittal of an application to the Hazardous
Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) for funding for the demolition and removal of a home
located at 131 Morningside Drive in Boone. Several years ago numerous homes located in the
area were demolished and removed along Morningside Drive as part of a HMGP project. At that
time, the subject property owner was not interested in participating in the project. However,
continued flood related issues after the sale of the home has prompted the new owners to request
participation in the HMGP. Based on conversations with Mr. Sudderth, the Town of Boone was
not interested in participating in the current application leaving the County the only option for
assistance and relief for the home owner.

The total cost of the project is $215,874 with a required match of $53,968.50, which is to be paid
by the State. The only cost to the County would be staff time and maintenance (mowing/weed
eating) of the property once the project is completed. Staff would continue to work with the
Town for possible incorporation into the existing lots already mitigated.

Board approval is required to accept the grant from the Hazardous Mitigation Grant Program
(HMGP) in the amount of $215,874 with the required match of $53,968.50 to be paid by the
State.

85



030116 BCC Meeting

86



030116 BCC Meeting

87



030116 BCC Meeting

88



030116 BCC Meeting

89



030116 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

90



030116 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 7:

REQUEST TO SURPLUS EQUIPMENT

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Ms. Pierce will request the Board surplus a 2007 Case Wheel Loader.

91



WATAUGA COUNTY
FINANCE OFFICE

814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC 28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007 Fax (828) 265-8006

MEMORANDUM
TO: Deron T. Geouque, County Manager
FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director

SUBJECT:  Surplus Property
DATE: February 25, 2016

This is a request to surplus County property - 2007 Case Wheel Loader. | request the
Board of Commissioners declare the item surplus and approve disposal by electronic
auction on GovDeals. This approval is necessary as we anticipate the sale price on the
truck exceeded the County resolution allowing the County Manager to approve surplus
under $30,000.

Board action is requested.

030116 BCC Meeting

92



030116 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 8:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Boards and Commissions

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees

The Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees has recommended Mrs. Kim Miller and Ms. Jan
Winkler for reappointment and Mr. Kent Tarbutton for appointment as Board Trustees. Each of
their terms would be effective January 1, 2016, through December 31, 2018. A volunteer
application has also been received and forwarded to the Watauga Medical Center Board of
Trustees from Ms. Michaele Hastings Haas who is interested in serving on this Board. These are
second readings.

Staff contacted the Medical Center Administration and they stated the Board of Trustees would
not meet again until March 24™ but the Nominating Committee was trying to schedule a
conference call. That being said, there isn’t any update at this time.

Personnel Advisory Committee

County Manager Geouque stated that the Watauga County Personnel Ordinance established a
Personnel Advisory Committee which is comprised of five (5) persons designated by the Board,
authorized to hear employee grievances, and recommend decisions to the appointing authority.
The Committee consists of one (1) Commissioner, one (1) department head and three (3) non-
supervisory regular employees. Current members of the Personnel Advisory Committee are as
follows:

Employee Position

Ms. Angie Boitnotte Department Head
VACANT Regular Employee
Mr. John Spear Regular Employee
Ms. Amy Parsons Regular Employee
Mr. Jimmy Hodges County Commissioner
Ms. Regina Houck Alternate Member

Mr. Brandon Saunders position is now vacant as he is no longer employed with the County.
Staff recommends appointing Ms. Regina Houck as the Regular Employee member and
appointing Derrick Ellison as the new Alternate Member.

Board action is requested.

93



030116 BCC Meeting

94



030116 BCC Meeting

95



030116 BCC Meeting

96



030116 BCC Meeting

97



030116 BCC Meeting

98



030116 BCC Meeting

AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS
OF

WATAUGA MEDICAL CENTER, INC.

October 2006

As Amended Effective As Of March 22, 2012

RALEIGH 317662.12
99



030116 BCC Meeting

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

DEFINITIONS . ...ttt ettt ettt et e st et e e st e e st e teensesseeseenseeneenseensesseensenneas 1
ARTICLE I NAME AND LOCATION ....ooiiiiiiiiiieieiieetestee ettt 1
ARTICLE II PURPOSE AND GOALS ...ttt 2
SECtiON 1. GENETAL....c..eoiiiiiiiiiiiieieeteeee ettt st et st 2
SECLION 2. SPECTIIC 1ovvriiiiiie et et e et e et e e et e e e aaeeebaeeesbaeessseeessseeennnes 2
ARTICLE I MEMBERSHIP........cooitiiiitiiiiieie ettt sttt et 2
ARTICLE IV FISCAL YEAR ...ttt se s 2
ARTICLE V BOARD OF TRUSTEES ..ottt 2
SECHION 1. NNAMIC .....eeiiiiiieeie ettt ettt e et e et e st e e bt e eabeesseeenseas 2
Section 2. Number, Composition, Term, and Appointment ............ccceevcveeevrerveerreenneennen. 2
Section 2.1, COMPOSIEION .....eeuerriieriieeiieitieeteesite et e ste et siee et e steeebeesenesbeesaeeens 3

Section 2.2, NOMINALION .....ocueertieiiriieriieie ettt sttt e sae e 3

SECtION 2.3, TEIMN...eiiuiiiiieiiieie ettt ettt ettt et eseeeebeesaeaens 4

Section 2.4. QuUAalifiCatiONS.........cceeeeiuiiiiiiieeciie e 4

Section 2.5. HONOrary TIUSTEES. .....couerueriiriirieeienieniteieeeeeit ettt 4

SECHION 3. POWETS ..coiiiiiiiiieeteee ettt st saeeas 5
SECHION 4. VACAINCIES ...eeuveeiiiieiieeiiieiie ettt ettt ettt ettt e st e st e enbeeseeesabeesaeeenseesseeenseas 5
Section 5. Resignation and Removal ...........c.coooviiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiececeeee e 5
Section 5.1. ReSIZNAtION .....oc.eiiuiiiiriiiiiiiiiieiteeeet et 5

Section 5.2. RemMOVAl .......oooiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5

Section 6. Conflicts Of INTETEST.......cceiiiiiiiiiiieie e 6
Section 6.1, DefINItIONS. ...c...eeiuiiiiiiiieiiieie et 6

Section 6.2. ProCeUIES.........ccuiiiiiiieiiieie ettt ettt 6

Section 6.3. Periodic REVIEWS .......cceoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 8

Section 6.4. Conflicts COMMIIEE ......cc.eeveriiriierierieniieieeteeeeie et 9

Section 7. INdemMNIfICatION .......eoiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieee et 9
Section 7.1. Indemnification Under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 55A-8-51 .......cccvvveeureennnee. 9

Section 7.2. Indemnification Under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 55A-8-52........ccceuvveennn. 10

Section 7.3. Advances Under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 55A-8-53.....cccoiiiiiiiviiiecieeens 10

RALEIGH 317662.12 i

100



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 7.4. Court-Ordered Indemnification Under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 55A-

B0 ettt ettt nte e neenaas 10

Section 7.5. Determination and Authorization of Indemnification Under
N.C. Gen Stat. § S5A-8-55. it 11

Section 7.6. Indemnification of Officers, Employees, and Agents Under
N.C. Gen. Stat. § S5A-8-56.....cuuoieieieieeeeeeeee et 12
Section 7.7. Immunity from Civil Liability .........cccceviiiiiieniiniiiieiieeee e, 12
ARTICLE VI MEETINGS ..ottt ettt sttt enae s enseenseeneens 12
Section 1. Regular MEEINGS .........cocuieiiiiiiieeiieite ettt ettt saae s e 12
Section 2. SPecial MEEHINGS .....cccuviiiiiiiiiieeciie e eriee et et e e e s teeesraeesreeesreeesareeenns 12
SECHION 3. INOLICE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et esbe et e st e sae e b e eneenseenee 12
Section 4. WaIVer OF INOTICE.....eeiuuiiiiiiiieiieete ettt et et 12
SeCtion 5. QUOTUIM ......oiiiiiiiiiieciie ettt et e ettt e et e et eeeetaeeeeteeeeaaeeesaeeeaseeeeaseeesreeenns 13
Section 6. PTOCEAUIE ....c..eeiuiiiiiiii ettt et e 13
SECHION 7. VO NG .veiiiieiiieciieeieeeie ettt ettt ettt te et e et e staeebeesaaeesseessseensaensseenseennns 13
Section 8. Manner 0f ACLION .........ooiuiiiiiiiieiie ettt 13
Section 10. AENAANCE ......eoovieiiriieiieieeeeee ettt 14
Section 11. Open MEETINES ....cccuevuiiiiiiiiniieieeieritee ettt 14
ARTICLE VII OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES......cccccceiiiiiiiiieieeeneeieeene 14
Section 1. Officers and EIECHON ........cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeceeee e 14
Section 2. Duties of Chairman ...........ccceoiiiiiiiiiiiicieeeeeee e 14
Section 3. Duties of Vice Chairman ..........ccccueeiiiiiieiiieniieiese et 14
SECHION 4. VACAINCIES ...eouviiiiiiniieiiieieeeite ettt ettt ettt et ettt et e sbe e et esbeeeabeesaee 14
Section 5. Resignation and Removal ............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceee e 15
Section 5.1. ReSIZNATION ...cccviiiiiiiiiiieeciie ettt eee e eee e e eeaee e 15
Section 5.2, ReMOVAL .......coouiiiiiiiiiiiieiie et 15
ARTICLE VIII COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES ........cccoooiiiiiiieieeee 15
Section 1. Standing COMMIIEES ........ccvieriieriieiieeie ettt e 15
Section 2. Special COMMUILIEES ......cccvvieriieeiiireeiieerieeeriee et e eteeereeereeeereeeereeesereeenes 15
Section 2.1. CrEatION . ...c..eeuiiruieiiriierieeie ettt ettt ettt sae e saee s 15
Section 2.2. Special Committees with Medical Staff Members ...............c......... 16
Section 2.3. Special Committees with CitiZens ...........cecueeveeerieenieniieiienieenen. 16
Section 2.4. DISSOIULION ...c.eiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeee e 16

RALEIGH 317662.12 i

101



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 3. Powers and RePOTtiNg .........c.cocuieriiiiiiiiiieiiieeieeiteeee et 16
Section 3.1, GENETAL......c.coiiiiiiiiiiieiee e 16
Section 3.2. Minutes and Report of ACtion..........ccceevuieviieriienieeiieeieeeeie e 17
Section 3.3. Limitation........ccceieiiieiiiiieciieecieeerieeeste e e eeeeeeeeesree e sreeesevee e 17

SECHION 4. MEELINES ... .eevieeeiieiieeiieetie et eite ettt e steeteestteeteessaeenseessaeesseesssesnseessseenseennns 17

SECLION 5. INOTICE ..veeitiieiiiieeiieeeteeeeteeeett e e steeestteeesteeesabeeesaeeassaessseesssseessseeessseeesseeanns 17

Section 6. WalVer Of INOTICE........evuieriiriiriieieeiest ettt ettt 17

Section 7. QUOTUITI ......uiiiiiiiiie it e ettt e eeete e e e ettt e e e ete e e e e aaeeeeeeaaeeeeeeeaneeeeeeaeeeeeeenneeas 18

Section 8. Manner 0f ACION ......cc.eiruiiiirieriieieritee ettt 18

SECION 9. TOIM.....eiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e et e et e e e tae e etbeestaeesssaeessseeessseeesssaeenns 18

Section 10. VACANCIES .....ecueeiieiiriieiieieeiieie ettt sttt ettt et st sae e s e e enee 18

Section 11. Resignation and Removal ..........cccccoieviiiiniininiiniiicceccceeeeeee 18
Section 11.1. RESIZNAION ....ecviiieiieiieeiieeiieeie ettt et eneees 18
Section 11.2. RemMOVAl.......cccviiiiiiiiiiicee e 18

Section 12. Executive COMMUILIEE. .......evueeruirieriieieeieeiieie ettt 19

Section 13. Finance and Audit COMMIIEE .........ceeeieiiiiriieiieiieeieesie e 19

Section 14. Nominating COMMUILIEE. ........c.eeruierueerieeriienieerieeereeieeseeeaeesereeseessneeseenens 19

Section 15. Joint Conference COMMILEE. .......eevueeriiriiieriiieiierie et 20

Section 16. Corporate Compliance Oversight Committee...........ceevuveererreenciieeriieeenreennns 20

ARTICLE IX OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION ........ccoiiiiiiieiieieeeie e 20

Section 1. Officers and APPOINTMENL.........cccvieriiieriiieeiiieeiieeetee e e etreeereeeeaeeesree e 20

Section 2. Duties of Chief Executive OffiCer ..........coooieiiiniiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeee 21

Section 2.1  Duties of the Chief Executive Officer ........ccccoooiiiiiniiiiiniiiiicee 21

Section 2.2 Duties of the President..........cocooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieece e 21

Section 3. Duties of Vice Presidents..........cooueieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciceeeceeeeee e 23

Section 4. Duties Of SECTELATY .......ccouiiiiiiiiieiieeie ettt 23

Section 5. Duties of AssiStant SECTEIATIES. ......eoueeriiiiiiiriiieieeieeieete e 23

Section 6. Duties Of TIEASUIET .......ccueriiriiiriiiiiriieieeteeieee ettt 23

ARTICLE X MEDICAL STAFF ...ttt ettt 24

Section 1. OrganiZaAtION.........cceeeiieriieeieeiiieeieeiteete et e ete et e seteebeesiaeebeesseesseesaeeenseennns 24

Section 2. Medical Staft Appointment and Clinical Privileges .........cc.ccceeveviverciieenrennnns 24
Section 2.1. Delegation to the Medical Staff............cccooviiiiiniiiiiiie, 24
Section 2.2. Action by the Board of Trustees .........ccceeevveeerieeeiieeeie e 24

RALEIGH 317662.12 iii

102



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 2.3. Criteria for Action by the Board of Trustees ............ccceceeevveenunennnen. 25

Section 2.4. Terms and Conditions of Medical Staff Appointment Status
and Clinical PriviI@ges ........ccceeviiriiieniieiiecieeieee e 25
Section 2.5. ProCedure .........ccceoiiiiiiiiiieieeie ettt 26
Section 3. Hearing and Appeal Procedures...........cccoevieriieiienieeniienieeieeee e 26
ARTICLE XI ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT PROCESS.......ccccoiiieiiieeeieeieeeeeee 26
Section 1. Delegation to the Medical Staff............cccooiiviieiiiiiiiie e 26
Section 2. Favorable Action by the Board of Trustees ........c.cccccvveeviieeiieeecieeeie e, 26
Section 3. Notice of Special CONCEINS........ccvieriiiriieiieeieeiee ettt 27
Section 4. Action by the Board of Trustees Following Medical Staff Response ........... 27
Section 5. Action by the Board of Trustees ..........ccceevvieeiieiiienieeiiecie e 27
Section 6. Effect of Action by the Board of Trustees .........cccoceeverviiniencnicnennicnicnenn 27
Section 6.1. Medical Staff Recommendation Accepted ........cccceevvvevieerienenennnen. 27
Section 6.2. New Position Communicated ............ccoeveeriienienieeiienieeieeseeeeen 28
Section 6.3. Delegation Rescinded ..........ccoeevveiiiiiiiiiiieniieiieieeeeee e 28
ARTICLE XII OPERATIONS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et sttt e e nseenseeneenseensenneens 28
Section 1. Inurement and DiSSOIULION .......cc.eeiiriiriiiriiiiieieeieseeee e 28
Section 2. Permitted ACHVITIES .....eeruiiriieiieiiieiie ettt ettt 28
ARTICLE XIII AUXILIARY ORGANIZATIONS ..ottt 29
ARTICLE XIV RELIGIOUS MINISTRATIONS ......oooiiieieeeeeeeeee et 29
ARTICLE XV SEAL ..ottt sttt ettt et et e bt et e et enaeensesneens 29
ARTICLE XVI AMENDMENTS .....ooiiioieecieeee ettt sse e enaens 29
ARTICLE XVII GENDER ......oiiiiiiiiiiiiet ettt sttt 30

RALEIGH 317662.12 iv

103



030116 BCC Meeting

AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS
OF WATAUGA MEDICAL CENTER, INC.

DEFINITIONS
1. Corporation means Watauga Medical Center.
2. Board of Trustees means the governing body of the Corporation.
3. Bylaws means these Amended and Restated Bylaws.
4. Trustee means a member of the Board of Trustees duly appointed by the County

Commissioners of Watauga County.

5. Standing Committee of the Board of Trustees means a body authorized by these
Bylaws whose members are appointed by the Chairman of the Board of Trustees and which is
authorized to exercise a designated portion of the authority of the Board of Trustees.

6. Ex officio means service as a member of a body by virtue of an office or position
held and, unless otherwise expressly provided, means with voting rights.

7. Medical Staff means that component of the Corporation’s chart of organization
that stands for all practitioners who are appointed and are privileged to attend patients, or to
provide other diagnostic, therapeutic, teaching, or research services in Watauga Medical Center.

8. Medical Staff appointment status or appointment status means all matters related
to Medical Staff appointments and reappointments, to department and other clinical unit
affiliations, and to Medical Staff category assignments.

9. Clinical privileges or privileges means the permission granted to a practitioner to
provide those diagnostic, therapeutic, medical, dental, or surgical services, specifically
delineated to him.

10.  Practitioner means, unless otherwise limited, any licensed health care professional
applying for or exercising clinical privileges in Watauga Medical Center.

ARTICLE |
NAME AND LOCATION

The name of the corporation shall be Watauga Medical Center, Inc. (the “Corporation” or
“Watauga Medical Center”) and the principal office thereof shall be located in the Town of
Boone, County of Watauga, State of North Carolina. The Corporation shall have and

continuously maintain in this State a registered office and a registered agent whose office shall

RALEIGH 317662.12

104



030116 BCC Meeting

be identical with the registered office, and may have such other offices as the Board of Trustees
of the Corporation may determine from time to time.
ARTICLE Il
PURPOSE AND GOALS

Section 1. General. The Corporation is organized for charitable, scientific, and

educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, or any corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws, including, for such
purposes, the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt organizations under
said section.

Section 2. Specific. The specific purposes of the Corporation shall be: (a) to establish,

support, manage, and furnish facilities, personnel, and services to provide diagnosis, medical,
surgical, and hospital care, extended care, outpatient care, home care, and other hospital and
medically related services without regard to race, creed, color, sex, or national origin; (b) to carry
on such activities related to the promotion of health, which, in the opinion of the Board of
Trustees, may be justified by the facilities, personnel, funds, or other requirements that are or can
be made available; and (c¢) to engage in any and all activities consistent with or in furtherance of
the above purposes.
ARTICLE Il
MEMBERSHIP
The sole member of the Corporation shall be Appalachian Regional Healthcare System,

Inc., which shall exercise all rights of membership according to applicable North Carolina law.
ARTICLE IV
FISCAL YEAR
The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on October 1 and end on September 30.
ARTICLE V
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 1. Name. The governing body of the Corporation shall be the Board of Trustees

of Watauga Medical Center, Inc. (the “Board of Trustees™).

Section 2. Composition, Nomination and Election, Term, and Qualifications of Members

of the Board of Trustees.

RALEIGH 317662.12 2

105



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 2.1.  Composition. The Board of Trustees shall consist of ten (10)

members. Nine (9) of the Trustees shall be elected through the nominating procedure set
forth below. One (1) of the nine (9) Trustees shall be an active member of the Medical
Staff of Watauga Medical Center. The remaining Trustee shall be one (1) of the County
Commissioners of Watauga County and selected from time to time by the County
Commissioners of Watauga County.

Section 2.2. Nomination.

(a) On or before August 1 of each year, a Nominating Committee shall be
appointed by the Chairman of the Board of Trustees to nominate one (1) qualified
Watauga County citizen for each vacancy which may occur on the Board of Trustees.
The committee shall make its report to the Board of Trustees at its October meeting and
at that time the floor will be open for other nominations. The Board of Trustees shall
then select one (1) nominee for each vacancy by a majority vote of the Board of Trustees.
The list of nominees shall be presented to the County Commissioners of Watauga County
by the first of December of each year, from which they will elect the number of Trustees
for the total number of vacancies to be filled. In the event that a nominee is not elected
by the County Commissioners of Watauga County, then the nomination process set forth

above shall be repeated thereafter until a nominee is elected.

(b) The County Commissioners of Watauga County agree that in the future, if
circumstances indicate the appropriateness of such action due to the regional expansion
of Watauga Medical Center’s operations, the County Commissioners of Watauga County
shall consider expanding the number of non-County Commissioners Trustees appointed
to the Board of Trustees, which is currently nine (9), in order to allow the appointment of
residents of neighboring counties other than Watauga County, to also serve as members
of the Board of Trustees; provided that: (i) appointment procedures currently in effect for
the remaining non-County Commissioners Trustees are followed; (i) a majority of the
Board of Trustees always consists of residents of Watauga County, North Carolina; and
(ii1) at no time shall more than two (2) non-county resident Trustees serve as members of

the Board of Trustees.

RALEIGH 317662.12 3
106


Anita.Fogle
Highlight


030116 BCC Meeting

(©) Election of members of the Board of Trustees by the County
Commissioners of Watauga County as provided in this Section 2.2 shall constitute
election of the same individuals as members of the Board of Trustees of Appalachian
Regional Healthcare System, Inc.

(d) Section 2.2 of Article V of these Bylaws cannot be altered, amended, or
deleted except by a two-thirds (%) majority vote of the Board of Trustees present at a
properly noticed meeting and a majority vote of the County Commissioners of Watauga
County at a properly noticed meeting.

Section 2.3. Term. All members of the Board of Trustees at the date of the

adoption of these Bylaws shall continue in office until the expiration of their present term
of office and until their successors are elected and qualified. All members elected to the
Board of Trustees after the date of adoption of these Bylaws shall be elected for a three
(3) year term in such manner that one-third (%) of the Board shall be completing two (2)
years of their term, one-third (5) shall be completing three (3) years of their term, and
one-third (5) shall be elected for a new term of three (3) years. Trustees shall be eligible
to serve four (4) successive terms of three (3) years each, subject to the provisions of
Article V, Section 5 of these Bylaws, such term limitation to be applicable only to
Trustees elected after the date of adoption of these Bylaws, October 26, 2006. Each
Trustee shall continue to serve until his successor is elected and qualified.

Section 2.4.  Qualifications. Board members shall be chosen for their ability to

contribute to and support the objectives of Watauga Medical Center. Members should be
chosen from as wide a cross-section of the community as feasible within the limits of
size, to include, but not limited to, criteria such as socio-economic levels, geographic
area, occupational category, identifiable ethnic groups, and other factors as determined by
the Board of Trustees. Each member should possess the qualities of honesty, integrity, a
sense of justice, and a sound moral character. Membership on the Board of Trustees
should reflect a breadth of diversity that is in keeping with the broadened role of Watauga
Medical Center in the community.

Section 2.5. Honorary Trustees. The Board of Trustees may from time to time

elect certain individuals to be Honorary Trustees in recognition of distinguished

achievement. Honorary Trustees may attend meetings of the Board of Trustees on

RALEIGH 317662.12 4
107



030116 BCC Meeting

invitation by the Board of Trustees, but shall not vote or be counted towards a quorum,
nor shall they have any other rights associated with Board of Trustees membership.
Honorary Trustees shall be appointed for a three (3) year term and may be reappointed
from time to time.

Section 3. Powers. Except as otherwise provided by law, by the Articles of

Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, the Board of Trustees shall have and exercise full power and
authority to do all things deemed necessary and expedient in the governance, management, and
control of the business and affairs of the Corporation, including, but not limited to, establishing
policies to guide the operation of Watauga Medical Center and determining the scope of services
of Watauga Medical Center. Provided, however, that all new contracts for services, acquisitions
of property, or the sale of property valued at $100,000 or greater, and construction of $100,000
or greater by the Corporation requires approval by the Board of Trustees of Appalachian
Regional Healthcare System, Inc. Equipment purchases or leases by the Corporation valued at
greater than $250,000 also require approval by the Board of Trustees of Appalachian Regional
Healthcare System, Inc.

Section 4. Vacancies. Vacancies occurring on the Board of Trustees, including those by

resignation or removal, and any vacancy created by an increase in the number of Trustees, shall
be filled using the method as described in Article V, Section 2.2 hereof. A Trustee elected to fill
a vacancy shall hold office for the remainder of the original Trustee’s term.

Section 5. Resignation and Removal.

Section 5.1.  Resignation. Any Trustee may resign at any time by giving written

notice to the Chairman of the Board of Trustees. Such resignation, which may or may
not be made contingent upon formal acceptance, shall take effect upon the date of receipt
or at any later time specified in it.

Section 5.2. Removal. A Trustee may be removed from office, with or without

cause, by a two-thirds (%3) majority vote of the entire Board of Trustees recommending
such removal to the County Commissioners of Watauga County. If the County
Commissioners of Watauga County by a majority vote agree with such recommendation,
the Trustee shall be removed effective as of the date of the vote by the County
Commissioners of Watauga County. This is the only method by which a Trustee may be

removed.

RALEIGH 317662.12 5

108



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 6. Conflicts of Interest.

Section 6.1. Definitions. For purposes of this section, the following definitions

and rules of construction shall apply:

(a) “Interested Person” shall mean a Trustee, principal officer, or
member of a committee of the Board of Trustees, who has a direct or indirect
Financial Interest.

(b) A “Financial Interest” exists if an Interested Person has, directly or
indirectly, through business, investment, or family:

(1) An ownership or investment interest in any entity with
which the Corporation has entered into a transaction or arrangement;
(i) A compensation arrangement with the Corporation or with

any entity or individual with which the Corporation has entered into a

transaction or arrangement; or

(ii1) A potential ownership or investment interest in, or
compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the

Corporation is negotiating a transaction or arrangement.

() Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration and gifts
or favors which are substantial in nature.

(d) An Interested Person who has a Financial Interest in one (1) or
more parent, sister, or subsidiary business entities of the Corporation shall be
deemed to have a Financial Interest in the Corporation.

Section 6.2. Procedures.

(a) The Corporation shall cause all Interested Persons to disclose any
Financial Interests and all material facts relating thereto.

(b) The Corporation shall adopt procedures for determining whether
the Financial Interest of an Interested Person may constitute or result in a conflict
of interest. No Interested Person shall attend a meeting at which such person’s
Financial Interest is discussed, nor shall any Interested Person be entitled to vote

on any action relating to such person’s Financial Interest.

RALEIGH 317662.12 6
109



RALEIGH 317662.12

030116 BCC Meeting

(©) In the event the Corporation determines that a conflict of interest

exists, it shall take such actions as it deems necessary to resolve the conflict of

interest, including:

(1) Prohibiting the Interested Person from attending any
meeting at which is discussed the transaction or arrangement that results in
the conflict of interest;

(i1) Prohibiting the Interested Person from voting on any matter
relating to the conflict of interest;

(ii1)  Appointing, if appropriate, a disinterested person or
committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or
arrangement;

(iv)  Determining, by a majority vote of the disinterested
Trustees present at a meeting, whether the transaction or arrangement is in
the Corporation’s best interest and for its own benefit; is fair and
reasonable to the Corporation; and, after exercising due diligence, whether
the Corporation can enter into a more advantageous transaction or
arrangement with reasonable efforts under the circumstances; and

(v) Taking appropriate disciplinary action with respect to an
Interested Person who violates the Corporation’s conflicts of interest
policy in order to protect the Corporation’s best interests.

(d) The minutes of meetings of the Board of Trustees and all

committees of the Board of Trustees shall include:

(1) The names of all persons who have disclosed Financial
Interests, the nature of the Financial Interest disclosed, and the Board of
Trustees’ determination of whether a conflict of interest existed; and

(i1) The names of the persons who were present at the meeting
for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement, the
content of these discussions (including any alternatives to the proposed

transaction or arrangement), and a record of the vote.

110



030116 BCC Meeting

(e) The Corporation shall distribute this conflicts of interest policy to
all Interested Persons as defined herein. The Corporation shall obtain annually a
signed statement from each such person certifying that the person:

(1) Received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy;

(i1) Has read and understands the policy;

(ii1))  Agrees to comply with the policy;

(iv)  Understands that the policy applies to all committees and
subcommittees acting with the authority of the Board of Trustees; and

v) Understands that the Corporation 1is a charitable
organization and that in order to maintain its tax-exempt status, it must
continuously engage primarily in activities which accomplish one (1) or
more of its tax-exempt purposes.
® The following restrictions shall apply to any committee which sets

compensation for officers, Trustees, or employees of the Corporation, or, if no
such committee exists, to the Board of Trustees:

(1) No practicing physician who receives, directly or
indirectly, compensation from the Corporation for services as an employee
or independent contractor shall serve on or participate in the actions of
such committee; and

(i1)) No member of such committee who has a conflict of
interest in the Corporation and who receives compensation from the
Corporation shall, directly or indirectly, vote on any matter relating to that
member’s compensation.

Section 6.3. Periodic Reviews. The Corporation shall conduct periodic reviews

of its activities to ensure that it is operating in a manner consistent with accomplishing its
charitable purposes and that its operations do not result in private inurement or
impermissible benefit to private interests. In conducting such reviews, the Corporation
shall evaluate the following:

(a) Whether the Corporation’s compensation arrangements and

benefits are reasonable and the result of arm’s length negotiations;

RALEIGH 317662.12 8
111



030116 BCC Meeting

(b) Whether acquisitions of physician practices, if any, and other
provider services result in private inurement or impermissible private benefit;

(c) Whether partnership and joint venture arrangements and
arrangements with health maintenance organizations, management service
organizations, and physician hospital organizations conform to written policies,
are properly recorded, reflect reasonable payments for goods or services, further
charitable purposes, and do not result in private inurement or impermissible
private benefit; and

(d) Whether agreements to provide health care services and
agreements with other health care providers, employees, and third party payors
serve charitable purposes.

Section 6.4. Conflicts Committee. The Corporate Compliance Oversight

Committee shall act as a “conflicts committee” to carry out the requirements of this

section

and to adopt and apply such other procedures as it deems necessary therefor.

Section 7. Indemnification.

RALEIGH 317662.12

Section 7.1. Indemnification Under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 55A-8-51.

(a) Except as provided in subsection (d) of this Section 7.1, the
Corporation shall indemnify an individual made a party to a proceeding because
the individual is or was a Trustee against liability incurred in the proceeding if the
individual (i) conducted himself in good faith; (i1) reasonably believed (y) in the
case of conduct in his official capacity with the Corporation, that his conduct was
in its best interests, and (z) in all other cases, that his conduct was at least not
opposed to its best interests; and (iii) in the case of any criminal proceeding, had
no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful.

(b) A Trustee’s conduct with respect to an employee benefit plan for a
purpose the Trustee reasonably believed to be in the interests of the participants
in, and beneficiaries of, the plan is conduct that satisfies the requirement of
subsection (a) above.

(c) The termination of a proceeding by judgment, order, settlement,

conviction, or upon a plea of no contest or its equivalent is not of itself

112



030116 BCC Meeting

determinative that the Trustee did not meet the standard of conduct set forth in
subsection (a) above.

(d) The Corporation shall not indemnify a Trustee in connection with
the proceeding by or in right of the Corporation in which the Trustee is adjudged
liable to the Corporation or in connection with any other proceeding charging
improper personal benefit to the Trustee, whether or not involving action in his
official capacity, in which the Trustee was adjudged liable on the basis that
personal benefit was improperly received by the Trustee.

(e) Indemnification hereunder in connection with a proceeding by or
in the right of the Corporation that is concluded without a final adjudication on
the issue of liability is limited to reasonable expenses incurred in connection with
the proceeding.

® The authorization, approval, or favorable recommendation by the
Board of Trustees of indemnification as authorized hereunder shall not be deemed
an act or corporate transaction in which a Trustee has a conflict of interest and no
such indemnification shall be void or voidable on such ground.

Section 7.2. Indemnification Under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 55A-8-52. The

Corporation shall indemnify a Trustee who is wholly successful on the merits or
otherwise in the defense of any proceeding to which the Trustee was a party because he is
or was a Trustee of the Corporation, against reasonable expenses actually incurred by the
Trustee in connection with the proceeding.

Section 7.3. Advances Under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 55A-8-53. Expenses incurred by

a Trustee in defending a proceeding shall be paid by the Corporation in advance of the
final disposition of the proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the
Trustee to repay such amount, unless it is ultimately determined that the Trustee is
entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation against such expenses.

Section 7.4. Court-Ordered Indemnification Under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 55A-8-54.

A Trustee of the Corporation who is a party to a proceeding may apply for
indemnification to the court conducting the proceeding or to another court of competent
jurisdiction. The court may order indemnification if it determines that (a) the Trustee is

entitled to mandatory indemnification under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 55A-8-52, in which case

RALEIGH 317662.12 10

113



030116 BCC Meeting

the Corporation also shall pay the Trustee’s reasonable expenses incurred to obtain court-

ordered indemnification, or (b) the Trustee is fairly and reasonably entitled to

indemnification in whole or in part in view of all the relevant circumstances, whether or

not the

Trustee met the standard of conduct set forth in N.C. Gen. Stat. § 55A-8-51 or

was adjudged liable as described in N.C. Gen. Stat. § 55A-8-51(d), but if the Trustee is

adjudged so liable, such indemnification is limited to reasonable expenses incurred.

Section 7.5. Determination and Authorization of Indemnification Under N.C.

Gen Stat. § 55A-8-55.

RALEIGH 317662.12

(a) The Corporation shall not indemnify a Trustee under N.C. Gen.
Stat. § 55A-8-51 unless authorized in the specific case after a determination has
been made that indemnification of the Trustee is permissible in the circumstances
because the Trustee met the standard of conduct set forth in N.C. Gen. Stat. §
55A-8-51. The determination shall be made by the Board of Trustees by a
majority vote of a quorum consisting of Trustees not at the time parties to the
proceeding. If such a quorum cannot be obtained, such determination thereupon
shall be made by a majority vote of a committee duly designated by the Board of
Trustees (in which designation Trustees who are parties may participate),
consisting solely of two (2) or more Trustees not at the time parties to the
proceeding. If the foregoing two (2) methods of determination cannot be made,
then such determination shall be made by special legal counsel selected by the
Board of Trustees or a committee in the manner prescribed herein, or if a quorum
of the Board of Trustees cannot be obtained and a committee cannot be
designated, then selected by a majority vote of the entire Board of Trustees in
which selection Trustees who are parties may participate.

(b) Authorization of indemnification and evaluation as to
reasonableness of expenses shall be made in the same manner as the
determination that indemnification is permissible, except that if the determination
is made by special legal counsel, authorization of indemnification and evaluation
as to reasonableness of expenses shall be made by those entitled to select counsel

hereunder.

11

114



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 7.6. Indemnification of Officers, Employees, and Agents Under N.C.

Gen. Stat. § 55A-8-56. An officer, employee, or agent of the Corporation is entitled to

indemnification under this subsection to the same extent as a Trustee. The Corporation
shall advance expenses to an officer, employee, or agent of the Corporation to the same
extent as to a Trustee.

Section 7.7. Immunity from Civil Liability. Trustees and officers of the

Corporation shall be immune from civil liability for monetary damages arising out of
their service as such to the fullest extent authorized by law, including but not limited to
that immunity authorized by N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 1-539.10, 55A-2-02(b)(4), and 55A-8-60,
or any successor provisions of law.

ARTICLE VI

MEETINGS

Section 1. Regular Meetings. The Board of Trustees shall hold regular meetings not less

than four (4) times per year, in addition to the Annual Meeting, at a designated time and place.
The regular meeting in January shall be known as the Annual Meeting, at which officers for the
ensuing year shall be elected. The Executive Committee shall meet on the same days as regular
meetings of the full Board of Trustees.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Trustees may be held at

the call of the Chairman, or, in his absence, at the call of the Vice Chairman, or at the call of any
three (3) Trustees. The business to be transacted at any special meeting shall be limited to those
items of business set forth in the notice of the meeting.

Section 3. Notice. Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees may be held as provided in

Article VI, Section 1 herein upon prior notice of the designated time and place of such meeting
given by the Corporation. The person or persons calling a special meeting of the Board of
Trustees shall, at least two (2) days before the meeting, give notice thereof by mail. Such notice
need not specify the purpose for which the meeting is called.

Section 4. Waiver of Notice. Any Trustee may waive notice of any meeting. The

attendance by a Trustee at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting except
where a Trustee attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any

business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

RALEIGH 317662.12 12

115



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 5. Quorum. A quorum of the Board of Trustees for the transaction of business

shall consist of a majority of the members of the Board of Trustees as it is then constituted. In
addition to those Trustees who are actually present at a meeting, Trustees shall be deemed as
present at such meeting if a telephone or similar communications equipment is used, by means of
which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time.

Section 6. Procedure. At all meetings of the Board of Trustees, the Chairman, the Vice

Chairman, or in their absence, a presiding officer chosen at the meeting shall preside over the
transaction of business. The Secretary of the Corporation, or his designee, shall act as secretary
and shall prepare a record of all meetings of the Board of Trustees, and maintain the same in the
Corporation’s principal office.

Section 7. Voting. Each voting Trustee is entitled to one (1) vote on any matter before

the Board of Trustees. Voting by proxy is not permitted. A Trustee who is present at a meeting
of the Board of Trustees at which action on any matter is taken shall be presumed to have
assented to the action taken unless his contrary vote is recorded or his dissent is otherwise
entered in the minutes of the meeting, or unless he shall file his written dissent to such action
with the person acting as the secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof or shall
forward such dissent by registered mail to the Secretary of the Corporation immediately after the
adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to a Trustee who voted in favor
of such action.

Section 8. Manner of Action. Unless otherwise required by law, the Articles of

Incorporation, or these Bylaws, the act of a majority of the Trustees present at a meeting at
which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Trustees. Any action required or
permitted to be taken by the Board of Trustees under any provision of law, the Articles of
Incorporation, or these Bylaws, may be taken without a meeting by the individual or collective
consent, in writing, setting forth the action so taken, of all of the Trustees. Such written
consent(s) shall be filed with the minutes of the Board of Trustees. Such action by written
consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the Trustees. Any certificate
or other document filed under law relating to actions so taken shall state that the action was taken
by unanimous written consent of the Board of Trustees without a meeting and that the Bylaws

authorized the Trustees to so act.

RALEIGH 317662.12 13

116



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 9. Attendance. Members of the Board of Trustees shall strive to attend all

meetings. In the event that a member of the Board of Trustees accrues absences from three (3)
consecutive meetings, the Chairman of the Board of Trustees shall then be authorized to create a
special committee of the Board of Trustees to evaluate the status of the offending Trustee and
report recommendations thereon to the Board of Trustees.

Section 10. Open Meetings. Meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted in

accordance with the provisions of the North Carolina Open Meetings Law as set forth in Article
33C, Chapter 143 of the North Carolina General Statutes, as now written or hereafter amended.
ARTICLE VII
OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 1. Officers and Election. The Board of Trustees shall elect a Chairman and a

Vice Chairman for a term of one (1) year, each of whom shall take office at the Annual Meeting
or until their successors have been appointed. The officers of the Board of Trustees shall be
eligible to serve three (3) full terms of one (1) year each. An officer of the Board of Trustees
cannot be reelected after serving three (3) full terms of one (1) year each until one (1) year next
following the expiration of the officer’s last full one (1) year term. One (1) person may hold two
(2) or more offices, unless otherwise prohibited by law.

Section 2. Duties of Chairman. The Chairman of the Board of Trustees shall exercise

general supervision over all of the affairs of the Corporation, he shall preside at all meetings of
the Trustees, appoint the Executive Committee, the Finance and Audit Committee, the
Nominating Committee, the Joint Conference Committee, the Corporate Compliance Oversight
Committee, and such other committees as the Board of Trustees may authorize. The Chairman
shall be an ex officio member, without privilege to vote, of all committees of the Board of
Trustees in which he is not a voting member as provided in these Bylaws. The term of such
appointments shall be consistent with Article VIII, Section 9, herein.

Section 3. Duties of Vice Chairman. The Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees shall

perform the duties of the Chairman in his absence, or in the event of his resignation, death, or
disability.

Section 4. Vacancies. Vacancies in the offices of Chairman and Vice Chairman of the

Board of Trustees shall be filled by the act of a majority of the Trustees present at a meeting at

which a quorum is present.

RALEIGH 317662.12 14

117



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 5. Resignation and Removal.

Section 5.1. Resignation. The Chairman of the Board of Trustees may resign at

any time by giving written notice thereof to the Vice Chairman, who shall assume the
duties of the Chairman upon the effective date of his resignation, pending the
appointment of a new Chairman by the Board of Trustees to serve the remainder of the
unexpired term of the Chairman. The Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees may
resign at any time by giving written notice thereof to the Chairman. At the meeting of the
Board of Trustees next following the effective date of the resignation, the Board of
Trustees shall appoint a new Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees to serve the
remainder of the unexpired term of the Vice Chairman. Such resignations, which may or
may not be made contingent upon formal acceptance, take effect upon the date of receipt
or at any later time specified in it.

Section 5.2. Removal. The Chairman and/or Vice Chairman of the Board of

Trustees may be removed from office by a vote of at least two-thirds (%) of the members
of the entire Board of Trustees for the reasons and according to the procedure specified
for the removal of a Trustee in Article V, Section 5.2, herein.
ARTICLE VI
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 1. Standing Committees. The Corporation shall have the following standing

committees: Executive Committee, Finance and Audit Committee, Nominating Committee,
Joint Conference Committee, and Corporate Compliance Oversight Committee.

Section 2. Special Committees.

Section 2.1. Creation. The Board of Trustees may authorize, and the Chairman

of the Board of Trustees may appoint, such special committees as are necessary and
proper to carry on the affairs of the Corporation. In the event that the Board of Trustees
authorizes the creation of a special committee, the resolution of creation shall authorize
the Chairman of the Board of Trustees to appoint a chairman and the members of such
committee, as well as to designate the authority of the Board of Trustees which the
committee shall exercise, and any limitations thereon, as well as the functions that the

special committee shall discharge.

RALEIGH 317662.12 15
118



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 2.2. Special Committees with Medical Staff Members. In matters

relative to the Corporation and the Medical Staff of Watauga Medical Center, the
Chairman of the Board of Trustees may establish a special committee composed of both
Trustees and Medical Staff members. The Chairman shall designate the number to serve
on the committee which shall be composed of an equal number of Trustees and Medical
Staff members, shall appoint the Trustees, shall designate any ex officio member from the
administrative staff, and shall specify the function and purpose of the committee, subject
to the approval of the Board of Trustees. The Chief of the Medical Staft shall appoint the
members of the special committee from the Medical Staff of Watauga Medical Center.

Section 2.3. Special Committees with Citizens. In matters relative to the

Corporation and the citizens of Watauga County, the Chairman of the Board of Trustees
may establish a special committee composed of both Trustees and citizens of Watauga
County, selected at large. The Chairman shall designate the number to serve on the
committee, appoint the members of the committee, and specify the function and purpose
of the committee, subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees.

Section 2.4. Dissolution. Upon acceptance by the Board of Trustees of the final

report of any special committee, the committee shall be dissolved.

Section 3. Powers and Reporting.

Section 3.1. General. Each committee of the Board of Trustees shall have and

exercise the powers and authority of the Board of Trustees granted to it in the resolution
creating it or as provided in these Bylaws. No committee shall have authority to act on
behalf of the Board of Trustees as to the following matters:

(a) The dissolution, merger, or consolidation of the Corporation, the
amendment of the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, or the sale, lease,
or exchange of all or substantially all of the property of the Corporation;

(b) Filling of the vacancies in the Board of Trustees;

(©) The amendment or repeal of the Bylaws, or the adoption of new
Bylaws;

(d) The amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board of

Trustees which by its terms shall not be so amendable or repealable.

RALEIGH 317662.12 16
119



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 3.2. Minutes and Report of Action. Each committee of the Board of

Trustees shall keep minutes of its proceedings and report its actions to the Board of
Trustees. Actions of the committees of the Board of Trustees are effective when
approved by the Board of Trustees except in either of the following circumstances, when
actions of committees can be made effective when taken:
(a) By the Executive Committee when it exercises the power and
authority of the Board of Trustees as provided in these Bylaws; or
(b) Where the Board of Trustees may from time-to-time authorize by
resolution that a committee take actions on behalf of the Board of Trustees
between meetings of the Board of Trustees.
Rescission by the Board of Trustees of any action taken by a committee thereof shall not
affect the rights of third parties accruing prior to such rescission.

Section 3.3. Limitation. When the Executive Committee exercises the power and

authority of the Board of Trustees or, when pursuant to a Board of Trustees’ resolution, a
committee takes action on behalf of the Board of Trustees between meetings of the Board
of Trustees, such exercise of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Trustees
or any member thereof of any responsibility or liability imposed upon it or him by law. If
action taken is not thereafter formally considered by the Board of Trustees, a Trustee may
dissent from such action by filing his written objection with the Secretary with reasonable
promptness upon learning of such action.

Section 4. Meetings. Meetings of a committee of the Board of Trustees may be called by

the Chairman of the Board of Trustees, the chairman of the committee, the Chief Executive

Officer of the Corporation, or any two (2) of the committee’s voting members.

Section 5. Notice. The person or person(s) calling a meeting of a committee of the

Board of Trustees shall, at least two (2) days before any meeting, give oral or written notice

thereof. Such notice need not specify the purpose for which the meeting is called.

Section 6. Waiver of Notice. Any Trustee may waive notice of any meeting of a

committee. The attendance by a Trustee at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such
meeting except where a Trustee attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the

transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

RALEIGH 317662.12 17

120



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 7. Quorum. A quorum of a committee of the Board of Trustees shall consist of a

majority of the members of the committee as it is then constituted.

Section 8. Manner of Action. The act of a majority of the members of a committee of

the Board of Trustees present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the
committee so meeting. No action taken at a meeting at which less than a quorum was present is
valid unless approved in writing by the absent members. Action may be taken without a meeting
by a writing setting forth the action so taken signed by each member of the committee entitled to
vote thereat. A member of a committee of the Board of Trustees who is present at a meeting of
such committee at which action is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken
unless his contrary vote is recorded or his dissent is otherwise entered in the minutes of the
meeting of the committee, or unless he shall file his written dissent to such action with the person
acting as the secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof, or shall forward such
dissent by registered mail to the Secretary of the Corporation immediately after the adjournment
of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to a Trustee who voted in favor of such
action.

Section 9. Term. Each member of a committee of the Board of Trustees shall hold such

office until the next annual election of Trustees, and until his successor as a member of such
committee of the Board of Trustees is elected, unless he resigns or is removed from the
committee. A member of a committee of the Board of Trustees may succeed himself.

Section 10. Vacancies. A vacancy on any committee of the Board of Trustees may be

filled for the remainder of the unexpired term of the committee member by the Chairman of the
Board of Trustees.

Section 11. Resignation and Removal.

Section 11.1. Resignation. Any member of a committee of the Board of Trustees

may resign at any time by giving written notice to the chairman of the committee. Such
resignation, which may or may not be made contingent upon formal acceptance, takes
effect upon the date of receipt or at any later time specified in it.

Section 11.2. Removal. Any member of a committee of the Board of Trustees,

except an ex officio member, may be removed by the Chairman of the Board of Trustees

for the reasons specified for the removal of a Trustee in Article V, Section 5.2, herein.

RALEIGH 317662.12 18
121



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 12. Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall consist of the

Chairman of the Board of Trustees, the Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees, the immediate
past Chairman of the Board of Trustees (if still a member of the Board of Trustees), a member
chosen from the County Commissioners of Watauga County, and two (2) other Trustees. The
Chairman shall appoint the members of the Executive Committee and shall serve as its
Chairman. In the absence of a quorum of the entire Board of Trustees, the Executive Committee
or a majority thereof shall have full authority to act in all matters relating to Watauga Medical
Center business, including, but not limited to all things deemed necessary and expedient in the
governance, management, and control of the business and affairs of the Corporation, including
matters relating to executive compensation, and shall have and exercise the power and authority
of the Board of Trustees to transact all regular business of the Corporation when the Board of
Trustees is not in session, except as prohibited in Article V, Section 3 herein. Further, the
Executive Committee or a majority thereof shall have full authority to act on behalf of Watauga
Medical Center at any called or special meeting. When the Executive Committee exercises the
power and authority of the Board of Trustees, such action is subject to ratification by the Board
of Trustees.

Section 13. Finance and Audit Committee. The Finance and Audit Committee shall

consist of at least three (3) Trustees, and shall be advised by the Treasurer of the Corporation.
The Chairman shall appoint the members of the Finance and Audit Committee and shall
designate its chairman. The Finance and Audit Committee shall have and exercise general
oversight responsibility for the investment of all endowment and other capital funds of the
Corporation, for the budget and financial planning of the Corporation, and for the coordination of
all programs affecting the fiscal affairs or financial condition of the Corporation.

Section 14. Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by

the Chairman of the Board of Trustees and shall designate its chairman. The Nominating
Committee shall develop and maintain a list of persons qualified to serve as members of the
Board of Trustees. It shall have the responsibility to (a) obtain from appropriate sources the
names of persons well qualified to serve as Trustees who shall be residents of Watauga County;
(b) determine whether persons recommended to the Nominating Committee are willing to be
considered for appointment to the Board of Trustees; (c) request that such persons who indicate

an interest in serving as a Trustee submit to the Nominating Committee such biographical data in

RALEIGH 317662.12 19

122



030116 BCC Meeting

such form as the Nominating Committee deems appropriate; (d) submit to the Corporation’s
Board of Trustees for recommendation to the County Commissioners of Watauga County
nominations to fill a vacancy or vacancies on the Board of Trustees as required by Article V,
Section 2.2 herein; and (e) consider in its deliberations the provisions of these Bylaws
concerning qualifications and fitness for office, and concerning composition of the Board of
Trustees as required by Article V, Section 2.2 herein.

Section 15. Joint Conference Committee. Should the need arise for discussion of a

medical-administrative nature and/or for communication of recommendations or concerns
between the Board of Trustees and the Medical Staff, the Chairman of the Board of Trustees may
call for a meeting of the Joint Conference Committee. The Joint Conference Committee shall
consist of the members of the Medical Staff Executive Committee and the Executive Committee
of the Board of Trustees. The Chairman of the Board of Trustees shall serve as Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer shall serve as an ex officio voting member.

Section 16. Corporate Compliance Oversight Committee. The Corporate Compliance

Oversight Committee shall consist of the Chairmen of the Boards of Trustees of Appalachian
Regional Healthcare System, Inc., the Corporation, and Charles A. Cannon, Jr. Memorial
Hospital, Incorporated, ex officio, regardless of whether such offices are held by the same
person; the Chief Executive Officer , ex officio; and two (2) other Trustees whom the Chairman
of the Board of Trustees shall select, one (1) of whom shall be designated by the Chairman of the
Board of Trustees to serve as Chairman of the Corporate Compliance Oversight Committee. The
Corporate Compliance Oversight Committee shall have and exercise general oversight
responsibility for the Corporation’s Corporate Compliance Program, which shall have available
continuing legal advice in order to assure that the program is effective in preventing and
detecting criminal conduct and in providing the Corporation a structure to ensure continued
compliance with applicable statutes and regulations.
ARTICLE IX
OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION
Section 1. Appointment of Officers. The President and Chief Executive Officer of

Appalachian Regional Healthcare System, Inc. shall select and appoint the following officers, all

of whom shall serve at the pleasure of the President and Chief Executive Officer of Appalachian

RALEIGH 317662.12 20

123



030116 BCC Meeting

Regional Healthcare System, Inc.: a Chief Executive Officer, a President, Vice President, a
Secretary, Assistant Secretaries, and a Treasurer.

Section 2.  Duties of Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer shall be the

officer of the Corporation responsible for the Corporation’s overall management, and shall act as
the duly authorized representative of the Board of Trustees in all matters except those which the
Board of Trustees has formally designated to some other person or group. The Chief Executive
Officer shall, with the approval of the Board of Trustees, be responsible for overall strategy;
establish the strategic orientation and directives of the Corporation; shall see that such directives
are carried out by the other officers of the Corporation; and shall be responsible for the general
leadership of the Corporation. The Chief Executive Officer shall sign all documents, financial
forms, contracts, agreements, and other obligations authorized to be executed by the Board of
Trustees. In addition, the Chief Executive Officer shall prepare an annual budget showing the
expected receipts and expenditures of the Corporation as required by the Board of Trustees and
shall report to the Board of Trustees at designated intervals upon the work performed by the
Corporation and upon its financial condition. The Board of Trustees shall be responsible for the
evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer. Upon approval of the Board of Trustees, the office of
Chief Executive Officer and the office of President may be held by the same individual.

Section 3. Duties of President. The President of the Corporation shall be the officer of

the Corporation responsible for the day-to-day on-site management, operations, and leadership of
the Corporation. The President shall see that the policies and directives of the Chief Executive
Officer and the Board of Trustees are properly carried out. The President shall be given the
specific responsibility for:

(a) Development and submission to the Board of Trustees for approval a plan
of organization of the personnel and others connected with the operation of Watauga
Medical Center.

(b) Selection, employment, control, and discharge of employees and
development and maintenance of personnel policies and practices of Watauga Medical
Center.

(c) Maintenance of physical properties in a good state of repair and operating

condition.

RALEIGH 317662.12 21

124



030116 BCC Meeting

(d) Supervision of business affairs to ensure that funds are collected and
expended to the best possible advantage.

(e) Cooperation with the Medical Staff and with all those concerned with the
rendering of professional service to the end that high quality care may be rendered to
patients.

€3} Presentation to the Board of Trustees, or its authorized committee, of a
periodic report reflecting the professional service and financial activity of Watauga
Medical Center and preparation and submission of such special reports as may be
required by the Board of Trustees.

(2) Attendance of all meetings of the Board of Trustees and committees
thereof.

(h)  To grant temporary privileges to Medical Staff applicants in accordance
with the provisions of the Medical Staff Bylaws.

(1) To suspend all or any portion of the clinical privileges of a Medical Staff
appointee or other individual whenever the President believes that failure to take such
action would result in imminent danger to the health and/or safety of any individual or to
the orderly operation of Watauga Medical Center. Such precautionary suspension shall
be deemed an interim precautionary step in the professional review activity related to the
ultimate professional review action that will be taken with respect to the suspended
individual but is not a complete professional review action in and of itself. It shall not
imply any finding of responsibility for the situation that caused the suspension.

) Performance of other duties that may be necessary in the best interests of
Watauga Medical Center.

In the absence of the Chief Executive Officer, or in the event of his death, inability, or
refusal to act, the President, unless otherwise determined by the Board of Trustees, shall perform
the duties of the Chief Executive Officer, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be
subject to, all the restrictions upon the Chief Executive Officer. The President also shall have
such other powers and perform such other duties as are provided in these Bylaws and as the
Board of Trustees may from time to time determine. The Chief Executive Officer and the Board

of Trustees shall be responsible for the evaluation of the President. Upon approval of the Board

RALEIGH 317662.12 22

125



030116 BCC Meeting

of Trustees, the office of Chief Executive Officer and the office of President may be held by the
same individual.

Section 4. Duties of Vice Presidents. The Vice Presidents shall be subject to the

supervision and control of the President of the Corporation, and shall have authority as may be
delegated to them by the President and Chief Executive Officer of Appalachian Regional
Healthcare System, Inc.

Section 5. Duties of Secretary. The Secretary of the Corporation shall have custody of

the seal of the Corporation and shall affix the same attested to by his signature to all deeds, notes,
and obligating instruments to be under the seal of the Board of Trustees. The Secretary shall
sign with the Chief Executive Officer in the name of the Board of Trustees all contracts,
agreements, and other obligations authorized to be executed by the Board of Trustees. The
Secretary shall keep an accurate list of the members of the Board of Trustees and of the dates of
their respective terms and the expiration thereof. In general, the Secretary of the Corporation
shall perform all such acts as may be described by the Board of Trustees and as are usually
incident to the office of Secretary of the Corporation.

Section 6. Duties of Assistant Secretaries. In the absence of the Secretary or in the event

of his death, inability, or refusal to act, the Assistant Secretaries in the order of their length of
service as Assistant Secretary, unless otherwise determined by the Board of Trustees, shall
perform the duties of the Secretary and when so acting shall have all the powers of and be
subject to all the restrictions upon the Secretary. They shall perform such other duties as may be
assigned to them by the Secretary, or by the President and Chief Executive Officer of
Appalachian Regional Healthcare System, Inc.

Section 7. Duties of Treasurer. The Treasurer of the Corporation shall be the Chief

Financial Officer of the Corporation. The Treasurer may be required by the Board of Trustees to
post bond with adequate sureties, the expense of which shall be paid by the Corporation. The
Treasurer shall have the authority and responsibility to receive and safely keep all monies and
securities of the Corporation; to pay or cause to be paid all lawful indebtedness of the
Corporation; to keep or cause to be kept a record of all receipts and expenditures through an
approved accounting system and to see that a true and accurate accounting of the financial
transactions of the Corporation are made and kept; to present, or cause to be presented to the

Board of Trustees at each regular meeting, a written report of operating results of the

RALEIGH 317662.12 23

126



030116 BCC Meeting

Corporation since the last preceding regular meeting of the Board of Trustees; to present, or
cause to be presented to the Board of Trustees at its Annual Meeting, an annual report as to the
operating results of the Corporation for the preceding fiscal year; to present to the Board of
Trustees a recommendation as to a certified public accountant to annually examine and audit the
books of the Corporation and its controlled affiliates; and to exercise and perform such other
authority and responsibilities as the Board of Trustees may direct from time to time.
ARTICLE X
MEDICAL STAFF

Section 1. Organization. The Board of Trustees has created a Medical Staff component
within the Corporation’s chart of organization which shall be comprised of all practitioners who
have been determined to satisfy the qualifications for membership and have been appointed by
the Board of Trustees. Appointment to the Medical Staff of Watauga Medical Center is a
prerequisite to the exercise of clinical privileges at Watauga Medical Center, except as may be
otherwise specifically provided in the Medical Staff Bylaws.

Section 2. Medical Staff Appointment and Clinical Privileges.

Section 2.1. Delegation to the Medical Staff. The Board of Trustees delegates to

the Medical Staff of Watauga Medical Center the responsibility and authority to investigate and
evaluate matters relating to Medical Staff appointment status, clinical privileges, and corrective
action and shall require that the appropriate officers and committees of the Medical Staff of
Watauga Medical Center adopt and forward to the Board of Trustees specific written
recommendations on these matters with appropriate supporting documentation that will allow it
to take informed action.

Section 2.2. Action by the Board of Trustees. Final action on all matters relating

to Medical Staff appointment, status, clinical privileges, and corrective action shall be
taken by the Board of Trustees after considering the recommendations of the appropriate
Medical Staff officers and committees, provided that the Board of Trustees must act in
any event if the appropriate Medical Staff officers and committees fail to adopt and
submit any such recommendation within the time period set forth in the Medical Staff
Bylaws and any of its supporting documents. Such action by the Board of Trustees

without a Medical Staff recommendation must be based upon the same kind of

RALEIGH 317662.12 24

127



030116 BCC Meeting

documented investigation and evaluation of current ability, judgment, and character as is
required for Medical Staff recommendations.

Section 2.3. Criteria for Action by the Board of Trustees. In acting upon matters

of Medical Staff appointment status and in granting and defining the scope of clinical
privileges to be exercised by each practitioner, the Board of Trustees shall consider the
recommendations of the appropriate Medical Staff officers and committees, the
supporting information upon which they are based, and such criteria as have been
approved by the Board of Trustees and made known to practitioners through the Medical
Staff Bylaws and related manuals or other mechanisms. No aspect of appointment status
nor specific clinical privileges shall be limited or denied to a practitioner upon the basis
of sex, race, age, creed, color, handicap unrelated to the ability to fulfill professional or
Medical Staff duties, or national origin, or upon the basis of any other criterion unrelated
to quality or efficient patient care at Watauga Medical Center, to required professional
qualifications, or to the Corporation’s purposes, needs, capabilities, and economic
considerations.

Section 2.4. Terms and Conditions of Medical Staff Appointment Status and

Clinical Privileges. The terms and conditions of appointment to the Medical Staff of

Watauga Medical Center, and of the exercise of clinical privileges, shall be as specified
in the Medical Staff Bylaws or as more specifically defined in the notice of individual
appointment, reappointment, or grant of clinical privileges. Each appointee to the
Medical Staff shall have appropriate authority and responsibility for the care of his
patients subject to limitations contained in these Bylaws and in the Medical Staff Bylaws,
rules, and regulations, and subject to any limitations attached to his appointment. Each
appointee to the Medical Staff shall, at the time of application for appointment, and at the
time of acceptance of appointment and reappointment, agree in writing to be governed by
these Bylaws, the Medical Staff Bylaws, rules, and regulations. Further, he shall
specifically agree to adhere to those responsibilities required of his Medical Staff
category as provided in the Medical Staff Bylaws, and such other duties and
responsibilities as shall be assigned to him by the Board of Trustees and appropriate
authorities of the Medical Staff. No appointment or reappointment shall take effect until

such a statement has been signed by the individual concerned.

RALEIGH 317662.12 25
128



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 2.5. Procedure. The procedure to be followed by the appropriate Medical

Staff officers and committees and by the Board of Trustees in acting upon matters of
appointment status, clinical privileges, and corrective action shall be as specified in the
Medical Staff Bylaws.

Section 3. Hearing and Appeal Procedures. The Board of Trustees shall require that any

adverse recommendation made or adverse action taken by the Executive Committee of the
Medical Staff, or by the Board of Trustees, with respect to a practitioner’s Medical Staff
appointment, reappointment, department affiliation, staff category, admitting prerogatives, or
clinical privileges, shall, except under circumstances for which specific provision is made in the
hearing and appeal procedures of the Medical Staff Bylaws, be accomplished in accordance with
the hearing and appeal procedures of the Medical Staff Bylaws then in effect. Such procedures
shall assure fair treatment and afford an opportunity for the presentation of all pertinent
information. For the purposes of this Section 3, an “adverse recommendation” and an “adverse
action” shall be as defined in the Medical Staff Bylaws.
ARTICLE XI
ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT PROCESS
Section 1. Delegation to the Medical Staff. The Board of Trustees holds the Medical

Staff responsible for drafting, debating, adopting, and recommending to the Board of Trustees, or
its authorized committee, in a timely and good faith manner, such bylaws, rules, regulations, and
other organizational protocols, including amendments thereof, as are appropriate for the proper
direction and management of the Medical Staff. All such documents and amendments thereto
must be consistent with the policies of Watauga Medical Center, as well as all applicable legal
and other requirements, and shall not be effective until acted upon favorably in accordance with
Article XI, Section 6, herein.

Section 2. Favorable Action by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees shall

receive and act upon drafts of bylaws and related documents, and amendments thereto,
recommended by the Medical Staff of Watauga Medical Center. The affirmative vote of a
majority of the Trustees present at any regular or special meeting shall be deemed the favorable
action of the Board of Trustees. Such bylaws, related documents, and amendments shall be
effective as of the date such affirmative action is taken or at such later date as the Board of

Trustees may specify. Provided, however, that amendments to the bylaws deemed to be

RALEIGH 317662.12 26

129



030116 BCC Meeting

technical modifications or clarifications in the judgment of the Executive Committee of the
Medical Staff may be effective upon report to the Board of Trustees but without the necessity of
affirmative action by the Board of Trustees.

Section 3. Notice of Special Concerns. Whenever the Board of Trustees believes that the

Medical Staff recommendations or existing documents are deficient in one or more respects, it
may, by special notice to the Chief of the Medical Staff of Watauga Medical Center, inform the
Medical Staff of its concerns, of the reasons therefor, and of the date by which the Medical
Staff’s response is requested.

Section 4. Action by the Board of Trustees Following Medical Staff Response. If the

Medical Staff’s response satisfies the concerns of the Board of Trustees that prompted the Article
X1, Section 3, notice, the Board of Trustees shall thereupon act upon the matter in accordance
with Article XI, Section 2, herein. If the Medical Staff’s response fails to satisfy the concerns of
the Board of Trustees or if no Medical Staff response is received, the Board of Trustees shall so
notify the Medical Staff, through special notice to the Chief of the Medical Staff, and the matter
will be added to the agenda of the next regular or special meeting of the Board of Trustees for
action by the Board of Trustees.

Section 5. Action by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees, at any regular or

special meeting at which the matter is duly considered, may (a) by the affirmative vote of a
majority of the Trustees present, accept the Medical Staff’s recommendation, either as originally
recommended or as changed pursuant to Article XI, Section 3, or advise the Medical Staff of a
new position which shall be communicated to the Medical Staff in accordance with Article XI,
Section 3, herein; or (b) by the affirmative vote of the majority of the Trustees present, affirm its
position and rescind the delegation to the Medical Staff contained in Article XI, Section 1,
herein.

Section 6. Effect of Action by the Board of Trustees.

Section 6.1. Medical Staff Recommendation Accepted. If the Board of Trustees

accepts the Medical Staff’s recommendation as originally submitted or as changed
pursuant to Article XI, Section 3, the bylaws, or other documents or amendments thereto
at issue shall be deemed to have been acted upon favorably by the Board of Trustees and
shall be effective as of the date of action by the Board of Trustees or at such later date as

it may specify.

RALEIGH 317662.12 27

130



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 6.2. New Position Communicated. If the Board of Trustees directs that a

new position be communicated, the procedures specified in Article XI, Sections 3, 4, 5,
and 6, as applicable, shall be repeated.
Section 6.3. Delegation Rescinded. If the action by the Board of Trustees is to

rescind the delegation, the Board of Trustees shall, with the aid of such Medical Staff
assistance as it is able to enlist, formulate documents or changes responsive to the
concerns of the Board of Trustees and submit the same to the Active Medical Staff by
special notice. Within sixty (60) days of such submission, the Board of Trustees shall
schedule and hold a hearing on the matter open to any member of the Active Medical
Staff, subject to reasonable rules concerning time allotted for debate. Thereafter, the
Board of Trustees, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Trustees present, may
adopt such document or change, with amendments, if any, and direct that the same be
circulated to every Medical Staff member. In the absence of the necessary affirmative
vote of the Board of Trustees to adopt such document or change, the disposition of the
Board of Trustees shall be in accordance with whatever action is adopted by the Board of
Trustees at the meeting at which the vote is taken.

ARTICLE XII

OPERATIONS

Section 1. Inurement. No part of the net income of the Corporation shall inure to the

benefit of or be distributable to its Trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the
Corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services
actually rendered and to make payments or distributions in furtherance of the Purpose and Goals
set forth in Article II of these Bylaws and in the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation.

Section 2. Permitted Activities. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws,

no substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or
otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate in, or
otherwise intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political
campaign on behalf of, or in opposition to, any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any
other provisions of these Bylaws, the Corporation shall not carry on any other activities not
permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt from federal income taxation described in

Section 501(c)(3) of the Code; (b) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under

RALEIGH 317662.12 28
131



030116 BCC Meeting

Section 170(c)(2) of the Code; or (¢) by a “charitable or religious corporation” as that term is
defined under the Act.
ARTICLE XIlIl1
AUXILIARY ORGANIZATIONS

Any auxiliary organizations that may be established by the Board of Trustees shall be
responsible and accountable to the Board of Trustees for the discharge of those duties and
responsibilities delegated to it by the Board of Trustees from time to time. In establishing an
auxiliary organization, the Board of Trustees shall initiate or approve bylaws, delineate the
purpose and function of the organization, and shall initiate or approve any and all subsequent
amendments thereto. Auxiliary organizations shall report to the Board of Trustees in a manner
established by the Board of Trustees from time to time. Nothing in this Article shall require the
Board of Trustees to establish any auxiliary organizations, and the Board of Trustees shall retain
the power to change, restructure, reorganize, or dissolve any such organization if established.
All services and functions performed by such auxiliary organizations shall be subject to the
overall supervision and direction of the Chief Executive Officer.

ARTICLE X1V
RELIGIOUS MINISTRATIONS

The Chief Executive Officer shall respect the request of any patient for any spiritual
advisor whom he or she may desire.
ARTICLE XV
SEAL
The Corporation shall use a seal to authenticate contracts and legal paper, which shall be
circular in shape, two (2”) inches in diameter, and with the name of the Corporation around the
margin.
ARTICLE XVI
AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may be altered, amended, repealed, or new bylaws may be adopted by a
two-thirds (%5) majority vote of the number present of the Board of Trustees at any meeting of
the Board of Trustees, provided that written notice of the proposed changes shall have been

given to the Trustees in the notice of the meeting. Any such alterations, amendments, repeals, or

RALEIGH 317662.12 29

132



030116 BCC Meeting

new bylaws, once adopted by the Board of Trustees as provided in this Article XVI, shall be
approved by a majority vote of the Board of Trustees of Appalachian Regional Healthcare
System, Inc. at any regular or special meeting held for that purpose, prior to such alterations,
amendments, repeals, or new bylaws becoming effective; provided, however, that no alteration,
amendment, or deletion may be made to Article V, Section 2.2 of these Bylaws by the Board of
Trustees except as provided by Article V, Section 2.2 of these Bylaws, which further requires
approval by a majority vote of the County Commissioners of Watauga County at a properly
noticed meeting, prior to such alteration, amendment, or deletion becoming effective.
ARTICLE XVII
GENDER

When used in these Bylaws, the words “he,” “she,” “his,” “her,” and “they” shall include

and mean the singular, plural, masculine, feminine, or neuter, as the case may be, and as required

by the text.

RALEIGH 317662.12 30
133



030116 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

134



030116 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 8:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

B. Announcements

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

The Board of Commissioners meeting scheduled for Tuesday, March 15, 2016, has been
rescheduled to Thursday, March 17, 2016, due to the Board Room being an official polling place
for the March 15, 2016, primary election.

135



030116 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 9:

PuBLIC COMMENT

AGENDA ITEM 10:

BREAK

AGENDA ITEM 11:

CLOSED SESSION
Attorney/Client Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3)

136



	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice 
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the March 1, 2016, Agenda
	Presentation of Smoky Mountain Center's Annual Audited Financial Report

	Request to Renew Contract with Courthouse Computer Systems
	Request To Accept HMGP Grant
	Request to Surplus Equipment
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Boards & Commissions

	B.  Announcements


	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



